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Head of the River Church is a two-story clapboard frame 
meeting house three bays wide and two bays deep. The building 
is of simple character, without any decorative exterior treat­ 
ment at all. It rises from a fieldstone foundation and termi­ 
nates in a simple pitched roof. The main entrance is a central 
wainscott double door. Twelve over twelve windows light the 
ground floor and nine over six light the second floor.

The interior is a two story space with a sloped gallery 
on three sides. The fourth side contains the paneled pulpit, 
which is reached by a small stair. It is so high that the 
minister stands looking into the faces of the people in the 
gallery. The four simple chamfered columns which support the 
galleries occur at the corners and at the mid point of each 
side gallery. The gallery balustrade takes the form of a 
paneled parapet with little embellishment. Four tapered wood 
columns rise from the gallery to the flat ceiling. The gallery 
is reached by a pair of simple half pace staircases which occur 
in opposite corners, flanking the entrance.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Head of the River Church is probably the oldest extant 
church in Atlantic County. It is also a fine surviving meeting 
house from the end of the 18th century. In addition, it was 
an early focus of Methodism in New Jersey.

The first Methodist minister in the area appeared in the 
winter of 1780. A society was formed to meet at Hunter's Mill 
near Head of the River settlement at the head of the Tuckahoe 
River in what was then Gloucester County. Land was given by 
Daniel Benezet, a large landowner in the area, and the congre­ 
gation began work on a church building in 1792. However, also 
that year Benjamin Abbot, a preacher of considerable note, left 
the circuit of which Head of the River had been a part. After 
this, interest lagged, and it was not until 1813 that the 
building was fully complete.

During that time, Francis Asbury, the first Bishop of 
Methodism in America, preached at the "Tuckahoe Chapel" 
several times. In 1839, Head of the Church was separated 
from the Cape May County preaching circuit along with the 
chapel of Marshallville, Hawkinsville, Williamsburg, Beesley's 
Point, and Petersburg. They became part of the Atlantic 
County circuit, with Rev. Joseph Atwood as preacher. 
Williamsburg (now Tuckahoe - not be be confused with "Tuckahoe 
Chapel" already referred to) and Head of the River broke off 
from this group and established regular services of their 
own with Rev. Edward Hicks in 1867.

From 1906 to 1913 Dr. Walter L. Yerks, a local dentist, 
acted as preacher. In 1914 $28 was appropriated for construction 
of the present out-houses.

After regular services were discontinued, Sunday school 
continued to be held in the church until 1934. As time passed, 
Tuckahoe became the main church in the area with Head of the 
River a subdivision of that mission. Today the church is 
still used, but only once a year for an all day service.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

Begin at the intersection of Aetna Drive and Cape May Avenue, thence proceed east 
along Aetna Drive 670 feet, thence due south 450 feet, thence due west to Route 49, 
thence northerly along Route 49 to the intersection with Cape May Avenue, thence 
northeasterly along Cape May Avenue to the beginning.
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The nomination includes the cemetery that surrounds the church 
The cemetery has been historically associated with the church since 
Its founding.
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